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In 1946, Sisters of Charity from St. Aloysius Military Academy,
Fayetteville, came every Sunday to conduct religious classes
for the children. These classes were held in the church it
self.

In 1956, the Glenmary Sisters were established in Georgetown
to do catchetical work in southern Chio. They were assigned
on a part time basis in the beginning and through the years
conducted the religious education of the youth, with the as-
sistance of various laymen. They also ran the two week summer
program of religious classes. During their ten years in the
area, they did marvelous work with the young people and
brought about an understanding of what women in religion were
like.

In 1967, the Glenmary Sisters withdrew and men from the Poor
Brothers of St. Francis Novitiate came and with the assistance
of lay personnel conducted the religious education of the
youth.

In 1968, Ursulines from St. Martin were asked to assist the
the Brothers with CCD. This has enriched and broadened the.
program considerably. In addition to this, St. Michael's
youth, with the exception of the high school students, have
gone for the past two summers to Brown County Ursulines at
St. Martin for two weeks of intensive religious instruction.
This has been a wonderful program for St. Michael's.

This past year, the high school students started attending
religious instruction at Daly Hall, St. Patrick parish in
Fayetteville. With Catholic Teens from five other parishes,
they were able to have a more varied program, with a monthly
visiting instructor. This program worked out so well that it
is being continued this year.

MOST REVEREND EDWARD J. McCARTHY
BISHOP-ELECT OF PHOENIX




MONESNOR JAMES H. HOBAN

Monsignor Hoban was born in Troy
Ohio, December 23, 1904. After
his ordination on October 30,
1930, he did graduate studies at
Fribourg, Switzerland then at
Catholic University, Washington.
He taught philosophy and theoogy
in the seminary until 1952. While
residing at the seminary he was
appointed to found St.Michael!
parish in Octcber 1944, In Feb-
ruary 1945 he was released for
"War Relief Services" in France.
In March 1946 he returned to the
seminary and was again assigned
to 5t. Michael's and to St.Amn's
Williansburg. With the help of
Brother Bertrand, 0.P. and some
loyal parishoners, Msgr. lioban
worked hard to convert an old
farmhouse into St. Michael's=
into the first recal church. In
memory of him this building has
been named '"lHoban Hall' . Msgr.
Hoban left St. Michael's in Mar.
1949, He died suddenly on Oct.
29, 1964 while he was the pas-
tor of St. Raphael Church,
Springfield, Ohio.

MONSIGNOR STANELY .J. BERTKE

Monsignor Bertke a native of
Cincinnati, was born July 9 1912,
He was ordained March 18, 1939.
after a period of study in Rome.
While he was teaching theclogy at
Mt. St. Mary Seminary, he was as-
signed as director of St. Michael
Parish from February 14, 1945 to
March 1946, while Msgr. lloban was
in Europe. Msgr. Bertke alsoser-
ved as a member of the allied rc-
lief group. In 1956 he organ-
ized St. Jude Parish in Mack Ohio
hwere he has a large and actice
parish today.

ST. MIQIAEL'S TEEN CLUB

1968 is an important date for the youth of the parish. With Father
William Schwartz they organized St. Michael's Teen Club in order
to teach the youth their responsibilities to the Church, to develop
the quality of Catholic leadership, and to provide social fgllow-
ship. Their purposes are being accomplished through educational
seminars on today's social problems and through social activities:
dances, picnics, and other social activities.

First row, left to right: Chris Scheidler, Iwande LeMay, Joy Young,
Teri Miller, vice president; Sharon Back, Mike LeMay, treasurer;.
Second Tow: Pat Battig, Randy Young, president; Larry Keller., news
reporter; Mike Keller, Janet Miller, past president; . Not pictured:
Mary Hettel, secretary; Melinda Liming, Debbie Liming, Sharon
Louiso, Deanna Scheidler.

USHERS

Al Nurrenberg, substitute; Joseph Keller, Clete Grieshop, Bill
Jones, substitute. g



COUNCIL

THE REVEREND CARL B. STEINBLECKER

Born in Cincinnati, Feb. 17, 1805
. Father Steinbecker was ordained
Sept. 8, 1933, He did graduate
studies at Xavier University and
Catholic University. He taught
social studies at Elder High and
Our Lady of Cincinnati College,
St. Gregory Seminary and Mt. St,
Mary Seminary. While residing at
St. Gregory Seminary he was made
administrator of St. Michael
and St. Ann Church on March 2,
1949. lie lcft these parishes on
August 4, 1951, and later became
pastor of Holy Name Church, Cin-
cinnati. Since 1965 he has been
pastor of St. Andrew Church in
Milford.

Left to right: Danny Books, Clete Grieshop, Bill Jones, Father
Joseph Bruening, Mrs., Betsy Bradley, Mrs. Anna Schadler, Mrs.
Jewel Conover, Miss Janet Miller, Mrs. Mary Jo Jones, Mrs. Dan
McCarthy, Mrs. Verona Otto, Joseph Keller, All Nurrenberg. Not
pictured: Mrs. Floyd Groager, Joe Louiso, Otte Scheidler,

Mrs. Ruth Wolfer.

SERVERS 5

Through the years, many young boys trained by the administra-
tors have been very faithful in serving at Mass.At present
twelve St, Michael's youth serve the church in this manner.
Surplices worn by the servers today were made by Mrs. Sue Prime.

THE REVEREND WILLIAM H. HUSEMAN

Father Huseman was bom on Novem-
ber 10, 1910 in Cincinnati, and
ordained on May 22, 1937. After
studying at the University of
Cincinnati, he taught science and
mathematics at the Institutum Di-
vinae Thomae and St. Gregory Sem-
inary. Like his predecessor he
lived at the Seminary and took
care of St. Michael's Parish and
St. Ann's Parish, He was admin-
istrator from August 24, 1951 to
December 26, 1953. At present he
25 is administrator of Saint John
First row left to right: Mark Daniels, Fred Schadler, Steve thurch, Dry Ridge, Ohio.
Conover, Gary Keller, Clay Brown. Second row:Mike Keller, Larry

Keller, Chris Scheidler, Randy YoungTom Hottel. Not pictured:
Jerry and Larry Syndor.




THE REVEREND JOSEPH P. ANDRES

Father Andres was born in Cincin-
nati, Dec. 21, 1921, After his or-
dination in 1928 he served as as-
sistant pastor in Cincinnati.June
10, 1953 he was appointed chap-
lain at St. Aloysius Military
Academy and assistant at St., Pat-
rick church in Fayetteville. On
July 10, 1953 he was named admin-
istrator of St. Michael and loly
Ghost Churches. Because of his
tireless efforts a new church

was built in Mt, Orab. On Aug. 9,
1961 Father Andres was made ad-
ministrator of St. Martin Church
and Heoly Ghost Church, Vera Cruz.
After Father Hackett's death in
1965 he was in charge of three
parishes: St., Michael, St. Martin
and Holy Ghost., June 21, 1967 he
was appointed pastor of St.Francis
de Sales Church in Lebanon, where
he is doing an exceptional job.

THE REVEREND WILL1AM B. HACKETT

Born March 1, 1919 in London, 0.
Father liackett was ordained Dec.
18,1943 and then studied in Fri-
bourg, Switzerland. In 1958 he
was named pastor of St. George
Church in Georgetown and taught
at McNicholas lligh School. On
Aug. 9, 1961 he became adminis-
trator of St. Michael Church and

continued as pastor at St. George.

On July 26, 1965 he was to leave
Georgetown to become pastor of
St. Vincent Ferrer,Cincinnati but
was found dead in his rectory
while his people were waiting for
him to come to a farewell cele-
bration.

a spaghetti supper and smorgasbord to supplement festival
funds along with suggesting that parishoners either add to
their weekly contribution or place donations in the fund box
at the back in church.

The Council unanimously voted for the following improvements
which have since been accomplished. These consisted of paint-
ing the Hall roof, installing a new lighting system in lloban
Hall, changing furnaces from oil to natural gas and painting
and paneling the church hall, along with tiling the ceiling.
The Council also send the Catholic Telegraph to all the
parish, even to those who did not subscribe. Another improve-
ment voted on and accomplished is the installation of a light
pole to protect the church property from vandals.

In 1968, the Council voted to hire a bus for two weeks to
transport the youth to the CCD summer school at St. Martin's.
This was continued the summer of 1969. In August of 1968, the
Council agreed with Father Schwartz to have the high school
students attend Monday night instructions at Fayetteville.

Two committees were named in 1968. These were the building

and grounds repair committee consisting of Danny Books, Don, Gene

and Joe Keller, Bill Jones, Al Nurrenberg and Otto Scheidler;
and the CCD committee composed of Betsy Bradley, John Cushing,
and Joe Louiso,

In the past year the Council also discussed writing legislators
in order to prevent passage of the abortion bill and to aid
passage of an educational bill which would provide funds for
non-public schools. In fact, all parishoners were asked to
write letters.

At the July, 1968, meeting the Council decided to dedicate
the parish hall Hoban Hall and to ask the families of the
parish to help underwrite the renovating expenses by special
contributions.



CHOIR

The official choir was organized in 1967 with seven members.
Father Joseph Andres asked Mrs. Ruth Ann Wolfer of Marathon
to play the organ for St. Michaelfs, a job she continues to
do today.

Standing left to right: Bill Jones; Miss Janet Miller; Mrs.
Frances Evans; Mrs. Mary Jo Jones; Mrs. Carcl Nurrenberg;
Miss Terri Miller;Al Nurrenberg. Children: Connie Evans;
Linda Nurrenberg; Sheree Jones; Brinda Nurrenberg. Mrs. Wolfer
is at the organ. Not pictured: Miss Judy Snider.

CHURCGI COUNCIL

While Father Andres was still administrator, the parish coun-
cil was organized in 1967 with eighteen members. Members were
chosen in the hope of getting a cross section of the entire

parish. At the first meeting Joseph Keller was elected presi.

dent and Mrs. Mary Jo Johes elected executive secretary! offices

which they continue to hold today.

One of the first undertakings of the Council was the census
and questionnaire concerning activities of the church which
the Council took to all the parishoners. As a result of this
questionnaire, the Council suggested cutting out the Festival
and substituting other money-making projects. This was acted
on with a parish vote. Since then the Council has instigated

THE REVEREND WILLIAM Il. SCHWARTZ

Father Schwartz was also from
Cincinnati. He was born there

on May 28, 1928. After his ordi-
nation May 30, 1953, he worked
zealous ly for five years in

Hami 1ton. In 1958 he went to Day-
ton where he served at C.Y.O.
director, Boy Scout director,
chaplain of St. Joseph Orphanage
and assistant director of Cath-
olic Charities. On June 21,
1967 he was appointed adminis-
trator of St. Michael Church and
assistant at St. Patrick Church
and Holy Ghost. As of June 19,
1969, he is assistant at St., An-
toninus, Cincinnati, and head of
the religion department at Seton
High School.

THE REVEREND JOSEPH B. BRUENING

Father Bruening was born on Aug.
9, 1927 in Cincinnati. He was
ordained in 1953 with Father
Schwartz. He was assistant in
parishes in Price Hill, Cin-
cinnati, where he also taught
at Elder High School. tlie was
appointed administrator of St.
Michael Church June 26, 1969,
and at the same time assistant
at St. Patrick and Holy Name
CGhurches with residence at St.
Patrick Rectory.




SAINT MICHAEL CHURCH

October 1944 is an important milestone for the for Catholics

?n the vicinity of Mount Orab. Prior to this time they found
it necessary to drive to Arnheim, Fayetteville, Bethel, George-
town, etc.in order to assist at Mass. Several Catholic fam-
ilies desired a church of their own, so they approached the
Archbishop. Father Hoban, who resided at Mt., St. Mary's Sem-
inary and taught theology there was assigned to found a mission
in Mt. Orab. Under Father Hoban's direction the old Bloody
Bucket saloon on North High Street was rented. Brother Bertrand
a Dominican brother, responsible for building many missions
Fhroughout the southwest corner of OChio, assisted Father Hoban
in converting the saloon into a church. The new mission was
known as the Congregation of the Mother of Christ.

T

Church of the Congregation of the Mother of Christ

Through the years, the women have been instrumental in buying
things for the church, They pay for much of the kitchen equip-
ment, both eating utensils and cookware, a lawn mower in 1953,

and the church floor in 1954, In 1957, they gave Father Andres

a check for $700. for the new church. The chairs and furniture
still used in the parish hall today were presented to the church

in 1959 and 1960. 1In 1962, they assisted in paying for the

new furnace, and in 1964 purchased new drapes for the hall.

It is they who purchased the carpet for the sanctuary in 1965.

The organ now in use in the church was bought by the women in 1968,

Many charitable and community services were also accomplished
during the years. In 1952, the women began to annually give the
children of the parish Christmas treats. Needy families for

many years were given Christmas baskets; today a basket is made

up and taken to the nursing home. The women still clean the
church and take care of all the laundry; they made baptismal robes
to be presented to infants. Along with other community or-
ganizations in 1966, they began to donate to the John Young
benefit dinner.

Seated left to right: Mrs. Thelma Young; Mrs. Jewel Conover,
secretary; Mrs. Anna Schadler, president; Mrs. Mary Alice
Young, vice-president; Mrs. Carol Nurrenberg, treasurer; Mrs,
Dan McCarthy; Mrs. Dave Brown. Standing left to right:

Mrs. Dorothy Gast, Mrs. Vivian Brown, Mrs. Marie Battig,

Mrs. Stella Scheidler, Mrs. Mary Jo Jones, Mrs. Andrew Back,
Mrs. Verona Otto. Not pictured: Mrs Joe Keller and Mrs.
Mary Keller.



Renovation and work on the saloon into a church was basically
done by Brother Bertrand who designed the altar and the in-
terior with the assistance of Father licban.. A few members
of the original church also worked.

Vital statistics from 1968 annual report show the following:

Souls 240 Grade school boys 30
Fami lies 6l girls 35

Baptisms 5 Attend instructions:
Marri ages 4 Grade school boys 25
Converts 2 girls 30
High school boys 4
girls 10

FARM

The rental of the farm has been a major source of income for St.
Michael's. Through the years, the land has been rented by Joe
Kellerwho raised pop corn;Harry Brunner who planted tobaccgbave
Brown (he rented it the majority of the years) who at various
times grew wheat, soybeans, corn, and tobacco; Roy '"Rank'' Watson
who raised tobacco. Presently the land has been placed in the
soil bank.

LADIES' SODALITY

The Ladies' Sodality, originally called the Blessed Virgin
Sodality but later changed to St. Michael's Ladies' Sodalityin
1956, was organized in 1949 by Father Carl Steinbecker with about
ten women for purposes of fund raising and socialization. Meeting
in the church sacristy, their first officers were Mrs. Dave Brown,
president; Mrs. Ben Stole, vice-president; Mrs. Mary Miller,
secretary; and Mrs. Ray Spornhauer, treasurer.

The major fund-raising project was instigated January 31, 1952,
while Father Huseman was pastor. The women decided to hold an

annual Mothers' Day bake salein May to be held at Koeble's Drug First Altar - 1944 - 1945

Store; in 1957 the place was changed to Kibler's Farm Store.

In 1960, it was additionally decided to hold a monthly bake sale Around twenty-two people attended the first services held at
the first Sunday of each month in the parish hall. Occasional the Mission. This grew to around 45 in 1946. It is here that
fund-raising projects have been the saving of sales tax stamps, _ the first Baptism of the parish took place. Omer Prime, 16,
Folger coffee labels, and Red Scissor coupons: the selling of was baptized April 20, 1946. On this same date Mary Jo. Keller
Christmas cards; the holding of Tupperware parties; and partici- and Omer Prime made their First lloly Commmion.

pating in raffles with organizations of other Catholic churches.
The ladies did the cleaning for the first church; a job they
continue to do to-day. Mr. Joe Keller began his faithful ser-
vice of firing the boiler each Sunday, which he continued
doing wuntil the oil fumace was installed in 1957.




Father Bertke with Mary Jo Keller and Omer Prine
1946

With encouragement from Father Joseph Schneider, Miss Marie

Tigges purchased 75 acres of farmland and deeded it to the
diocese on January 19, 1945, The $8,000 to pay for the land
was obtained from the Chancery office. All the land was re-
tained and rented until March 1954 when 27.7 acres on the east
side of the highway were sold to several buyers for $6,5000.

February 14, 1945, shortly after the church property was bought
Father lloban was released from his assignment for '"War Relief
Services' in France. On this same date Father Stanley Bertke
was made director of the Mission and served at Mt. Orab until
March of 1945 when Father Hoban was reassigned here. Father
Bertke is remembered as a fine man who was well-liked by the
members of the parish.

In the summer of 1946 work was begun to remodel the dilapidat-
ed farmhouse on the newly acquired church property. To aid
in the change-over funds were given by Miss Anna M. Maloney
in memory of her brother Michael along with other generous
patrons of the Missions, At this time the Catholic Church
in Mount Orab was placed under the protection of Saint

Mr. and Mrs. Joe Keller are the
only original members of the
congregation to still attend
church at St. Michael's.



In 1965, Father Joseph Andres returned as administrator in addition
to his administration of St. Martin and Holy GhostFather Mark
VondenBenken from the Ursuline Convent, alternated Sundays with
Father Andres. In 1967, Father Andres established his parish
council with eighteen members and the choir with seven partici-
pants. This same year the Ursuline Sisters at St. Martin donated
their oak pews to the parish. Men of the parish remodeled these
pews to fit the church and the women refinished them.

On April 22, 1967, Mr. and Mrs. Dan McCarthy, the first couple to
celebrate their fiftieth wedding anniversary, attended the Golden
Wedding Anniversary Mass at St. Peter in Chains, in Cincinnati. The
following week a Mass was celebrated in their honor at Mt, Orab.
They were married August 31, 1917.

June 21, 1967, Father William Schwartz was assigned to St. Michael.
The parish council began realizing his early potential and because
of his great interest in young people, the Teen Club was estab-
lished,

Father Schwartz had a very out-going personality. He met people
easily, and quickly made them his friends. For the short time he
was with the parish, he made many friends, both Catholic and

Protestant.

On June 26, 1969, Father Joseph Brueningwas appointed administrator
to St. Michael. It is at his suggestion that a history of the parish
hasbeen written and we hope that many good things will come from
his administration.

Michael the Archangel, and officially became St. Michael's
Church in January 1947,

Farmhouse before renovation

Brother Bertrand and Father Hoban once again designed the in-
terior, and the labor was accomplished mainly through the ef-
forts of these two, Joe Keller and his sons, and Omer Prine.
Pews were brought from the original church with others added
for a seating capacity of 100.The majority of the time, Mrs.
Mary Bingaman furnished the flowers and Mrs. Lois Grace play-
ed the organ. The cross on the altar is to be found in the
parish hall today.
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Altar - Christmas 1946




The first Mass in the new church was offered November 24, working, either in repairing the church or working on the grounds.
1946 by Father Hoban who remained in charge of the parish He won many converts to Catholicism and brought many people back

though hecontinued to teach and reside at the Seminary. to the Church. We deeply thank him and his family for the work
they have done for our parish.

August 9, 1961, Father William Hackett was assigned to Mt. Orab

in addition to his duties as pastor of St. George Church, George-
town, where he had been since 1958. 1In 1965, while Father Hackett
was still administratorthe church sanctuary was remodeled accord-
ing tothe recommendations ofVatican 1I. Solid cherry paneling
was installed in one day by five carpenters, headed by Carroll
Dunn, then mayor of Mt. Orab, and twenty five other men of the
area. The sanctuary was designed by Father Patrick O'Donnell,

a Glenmarv priest, who often celebrated Mass here on Sundays, and
the furniture was made by Joseph Carlier of Fayetteville.It is also
Father Hackett that we thank for the sewer line.

Picture of Renovated Church

On May 1, 1948, the first marriage of the parish took place be-
tween David Miller and Mary Carolyn Spornhauer. r

During these years the church continued to grow so that by
early 1949,there were perhaps a 100 members.

AT e Gl U

Remodeled Altar

Death of Father Hackett was a great shock to his parishoners, for
on the day of their planned farewell party, his body was found in
the rectory when he failed to appear at the church hall in George-
town. Father Hackett is still remembered for the twinkle in his
eye, his interest in all things, both religious and secular his love
of teasing and his gaiety. He was so full of life.




The First Altar in the New Church

The first Mass was celebrated on Easter, April 21, 1957 and His
Grace, Archbishop Alter, blessed the building at Mass on Sunday,
June 30, 1957.

During the time of building in 1957, the congregation had dropped
to seventy people following the establishment of St. Elizabeth Mis-
sion in Sardinia but in 1958, quite a few Catholic families moved
into the area so that attendance reached 140.

In 1958, the parishoners remodeled the old churchfor catechetical-
social use. At this time, a late Mass was added to Vera Cruzwhere
Father Andres was also administrator so that Father Andres al-
ternated with Father Eugene Megyer from Ursuline Convent.

Father Andres is remembered as a dynamic person who was very much
a go-getter. He was well liked by the parish and was talented in
being able to make himself at home with all people. He often
stopped by the homes of his parishoners and if they were working
he pitched in and helped.The Dave Browns remember his driving
past their farmm and seeing them baling hay, He stopped and went
to work. Father Andres was always

Father Hoban was a great personality, a man who made all people
feel at ease. lle was full of laughter and he enjoyed occasional
jokes. He was also a great fisherman. Many members remember the
accident he had one Sundaywhile driving to Mt., Orab. He arrived
an hour late and was very disheveled, yet he said Mass as if
nothing had happened. Joe Keller remembers the temperamental
boiler heater which blew so high on lighting that Father lloban
told him to light the heater saying an act of contrition at the
same time. Mary Jo Jones remembers his participation in comn cob
throwing . It is because of the fine work he achieved that the
parish is dedicating the parish hall as Hoban Hall.

March 2, 1949, Father Carl Steinbecker became the new administra-
tor while continuing to reside and teach social studies at the
Seminary. Under Father Steinbecker the Ladies' Sodality was
established with around ten women for the purposes of fund raising
and socializing.

Father Steinbecker was a pleasant, jolly, and paternal individ-
ual who had a great sense of humor and liked to joke. At one
meal, the Dave Browns remember his asking that the door be shut
so the food would not cool off. He was easy to get acquainted
with and and enjoyed visiting with his parishoners

November 24, 1950, while Father Steinbecker was stil) administra-
tor, the boundary lines of the parish were officially made for
northern boundary began where the Crosstown was situated on the Brown-
Clermont County line; then it went northeast to Five Mile located
on Route 68 and southeast to Buford in Highland County.

The eastern boundary went from Buford southeast to the westemn
extremity of Sardinia and excluding Said town on Route 32. The
southermn boundary went from the western boundary of Sardinia
southwest to New Hope; northwest from Sardinia to the point where
the Pike-Clark-Scott township lines meet and then west along

the Pike-Clark township line to where this line met the Brow-Cler-
mont line. The western boundary went from the Brown-Clermont
County line from Pike-Clark township line dur north to Cross-

town.

In 1957, the eastern and southern boundaries changed because of
the establishment of St. Elizabeth Mission in Sardinia. Present
coverage of the parish is shown in the fcllowing diagranm.
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On August 24, 1951Father William Huseman became administrator;
he also continued to reside and to teach math and science at the

Seminary. Father Huseman was a very strong minded individual, rather

abrupt but a good speaker.

During his administrator, the church festival had its beginnings,
including a dinner with games and refreshments held on the church
grounds. This later became one of the important sources of rev-
enue for the parish. The festival continued until 1966 when it
was abandoned with the agreement of the majority of the parish in
order to promote better community relations and because it had
become too much work. It is while Father Huseman was here that
Dave Kibler donated lumber that was used to make the picnic tables
and benches.

Through these years until 1953, Dan McCarthy and Joe Keller kept
the grass cut and the grounds trimmed.

July 10, 1953 Father Andres was appointed to St. Michael Parish

In the fali of this first year as he was saying his Mass, the flocor
on the right side of the church slowly sank into the ground, but
there was no panic or excitement. It was discovered that the
entire floor was termite ridden,and his parishoners poured a
concrete floor and sills with the aid of Father's own family;they

then covered the floor with tiles. The church was repainted and
new drapes hung at this time. The money to pay for these repairs
was raised at a supper held at the VFW Hall.

In 1954 the tobacco bamm was repaired. The barnyard fencing was
removed and the church lawn expanded to dress up the frontage of
the property. It is in this year that the festival program be-

gan reaching its entire potential.

1956 is a halimark in St. Michael's parish, for the decision to
build took place. There was a lack of space for catechetical and
social needs, a lack of running water and bathroom facilities,
and a lack of festival facilities. Money was again a problem for
the church had only $8,000; they therefore borrowed the rest from
the chancery to build. Yet because of limited funds it was de-
cided to erect only the first unit of a catechetical and social
hall and use this as a temporary church. Emphasis was on space
rather than on architecture. The building was designed by Frank
H. Ludewig, an architect and engineer from Middletown, Chio; the
builder was Lawrence Huber Company of Fayetteville.

By the beginnings of 1957 the exterior was completed and the whole
parish worked to complete the interior. In zero weather two men
worked to install the insulation and ceiling so that the heat could
be turned on. These men remember the intense cold for their fin-
gers stuck to the nails. All the parish worked on painting, in-
stalling the floor, building the altar, rails, etc.

The altar was designed by Father Andres with his brotherH. Andres
designing and building the the stations and altar plaques. The
altar crucifix and Infant of Prague statue were donated by the
Clarence Ruebush family; the candelabra and candle sticks were
donated by the Clete Grieshop family and Mrs. Celesta Disher in
memory of their parents, Mr. and Mrs. William Grieshop; and the
altar base was given by St. Francis Hospital in Cincinnati. Father
Andres" mother, Mrs. George Andres of Cincinnati, crocheted lace
around the main altar cloth. St. Patrick's church, Fayetteville,
donated the baptismal font and the John Cushing famiiy of Fayette-
viile gave the exterior cross. Pictures, stands, and other
statues were brought from the old church . At this time the
organ was bought.



